#### Uldaho Law Digital Commons @ Uldaho Law

Idaho Supreme Court Records & Briefs

10-3-2011

#### STATEMENT OF THE CASE

#### I. NATURE OF THE CASE

This action arose as part of an effort to collect a judgment entered against Defendant Gordon A. Jones by the Second District Court in Davis County, State of Utah. At the close of a bench trial in that case, the Judge indicated an intent to enter a substantial judgment on behalf of the Plaintiff, Allen F. Grazer, following a further submission of evidence on damages. At about this same time, Plaintiff and his counsel realized that Defendant Gordon A. Jones had transferred away his property, both within the State of Utah and in Idaho, in an effort to avoid collection of the judgment.

Based upon the discovery of Defendant Jones' attempts to fraudulently transfer property, the Plaintiff initially filed this action prior to the entry of the Utah judgment. The action originally included causes of action to set aside a quit-claim deed from Jones to J&J Livestock, LLC ("J&J"), which had been executed prior to the formation of J&J; the second cause of action sought to set that attempted transfer aside as fraudulent.

The Defendants' counsel responded to that Complaint by filing an Answer in which they denied the substantive allegations of the Plaintiff's Complaint; throughout the course of an intervening bankruptcy and until the filing of the Defendants' Answer to the Second Amended Complaint, the Defendants Gordon A. Jones and J&J Livestock were asserting that the deed was valid. Unless and until this issue was resolved by the court, the issuance of a Writ of Execution would have been futile.

Ultimately, following a number of delays in the case, including a bankruptcy, repeated

reassignments of judges, repeated withdrawals and re-appearances of counsel, and several vacated trial dates, the Defendants finally filed their Answer to the Second Amended Complaint on January 21, 2011. That Answer established, for the first time, that the Defendants had abandoned most of their futile defenses, clearing the way, in the Plaintiff's mind, for a Writ of Execution and/or Summary Judgment. That Motion was filed on February 11, 2011.

In their Answer, however, the Defendants also asserted, for the first time, that the Plaintiff's ability to execute on his Judgment was time barred due to the fact that the Plaintiff had also recorded a copy of the Utah judgment on August 1, 2005. (R. Vol. 1, p. 60.) While that judgment had, in fact, been recorded in Idaho, the action below was also pending, in an effort to establish the ownership of the property in question. Until the clarification of the ownership of the property, the issuance of a Writ of Execution on the Judgment would likely have been futile (by virtue of the lack of title ownership), or would have been challenged by the Defendants. Evidence of the Defendants' likely challenge to such an execution arises from the affirmative defenses raised in the January 2011 Answer, wherein they insisted that there were prerequisites to the issuance of a Writ of Execution which had not been met.

At about the same time as the Plaintiff was filing his Motion for Summary Judgment and Writ of Execution, Defendants asserted in their own Motion for Summary Judgment that the time limits for issuance of such Writs under Idaho Code Ann. §§10-1110 and 10-1111 had lapsed, in light of the fact that in excess of five years had occurred since the recordation of the Judgment. Their argument ignored the Idaho statutes and the case law which set forth that parties are not limited in their means for collecting a judgment and that ignored the fact that Plaintiff had been diligently seeking to collect the judgment even from before it was entered. No valid public

policy supports dismissal of the Plaintiff's claims based upon the lapse of time.

An additional matter in this appeal arises from the court's dismissal of causes of action asserted against Jason Jones who was named in the Plaintiff's Amended Complaint and the Plaintiff's Second Amended Complaint. The court dismissed Jason Jones by virtue of the lapse of too much time between the filing of the First Amended Complaint and the service of the Second Amended Complaint. In so doing, the court ruled, without any case law support, that the six month time limitation in Rule 4(a)(2) related back to the filing of the first Amended Complaint, rather than the filing of the Second Amended Complaint. This interpretation is not supported by the language of the Rules, and is not supported by public policy. There is no logical reason why the Plaintiff should have been precluded from filing and serving a Second Amended Complaint asserting causes of action which he clearly could have asserted in a separate action. That dismissal does not serve the ends of justice as required by Idaho R. Civ. P. 1(a). ("These rules shall be liberally construed to secure the just, speedy and inexpensive determination of every action and proceeding.")

#### II. COURSE OF THE PROCEEDINGS

This is an action filed in connection with the collection of a judgment entered in the State of Utah; the Plaintiff's Complaint was filed on May 12, 2005; action on the case was stayed for about a year following the Defendants' bankruptcy; Plaintiff thereafter filed an Amended Complaint pursuant to order of the court, a Second Amended Complaint pursuant to stipulation, and sought to file a Third Amended Complaint, leave for which was denied.

The court dismissed the Second Amended Complaint as to proposed Defendant Jason Jones on two occasions; Plaintiff also appeals the dismissal of that action.

Finally, the court granted Summary Judgment to the Defendants herein on April 1, 2011; the court's Judgment, Order and Decree was filed on April 26, 2011, and the Notice of Appeal herein was filed on June 1, 2011. Plaintiff appeals the court's granting of the Defendants' Summary Judgment, the court's denial of the Plaintiff's Motion for Summary Judgment, and the granting of the Motion to Dismiss Jason Jones.

#### III. STATEMENT OF FACTS

- 1. On April 26-29, 2005, Judge Alphin of the Second District Court in Utah heard a civil case involving the Plaintiff, Allen F. Grazer, and the Defendant, Gordon A. Jones. On April 29, having previously dismissed Jones' claims, Judge Alphin declared his intention to award judgment in favor of Mr. Grazer. (R. Vol. 1, p. 4, ¶14; admitted in R. Vol. 1, p. 53.)
- 2. This action was commenced by the Plaintiff's filing of a Complaint (the "Original Complaint") on May 12, 2005. The Original Complaint contained two causes of action; a cause of action for declaratory judgment invalidating a quit claim deed which purported to transfer property from Gordon A. Jones to J&J Livestock, LLC ("J&J"), and an alternative cause of action to set the transfer aside, as fraudulent. (R. Vol. 1, p. 1.)
  - a. Paragraph 12 of the Original Complaint alleged that Jones had transferred his Franklin County, Idaho property to J & J on December 22, 2004, one week after the Utah Court had set the Utah matter for trial. (R. Vol. 1, p. 4, ¶12.)
  - b. The First Cause of Action of the Original Complaint sought to set aside the quit claim deed from Defendant Jones to J&J, as void ab initio. (R. Vol. 1, p. 5, ¶15-19.)
    - c. The Second Cause of Action of the Original Complaint sought to set aside

the transfer from Jones to J&J, based upon the fraudulent nature of the transfer. (R. Vol. 1, p. 5-7, ¶20-29.)

- d. For relief under the Original Complaint, Plaintiffs sought "a declaratory order declaring the quit claim deed void ab initio and vesting title to the Franklin County property in Jones" (R. Vol. 1, p. 7, prayer ¶1); "For judgment avoiding the transfer of the Franklin County property... under the Uniform Fraudulent Transfer Act, I.C. 55-916(a)." (*Id.*, prayer ¶2), and "For a writ of attachment attaching the Franklin County property to satisfy Grazer's judgment against Jones." (*Id.*, prayer ¶3)
- 3. On July 8, 2005, "Defendants" filed an answer to the Plaintiff's complaint. (R. Vol. 1, p. 52.) The Answer denied that the quit claim deed transferring the property was invalid (Id at p. 53, ¶18), and denied that "Grazer [was] entitled to an avoidance of the transfer to the extent necessary to satisfy his judgment." (Id at p. 54, ¶27.) The Answer prayed that the "Complaint be dismissed with prejudice in its entirety [sic] that Plaintiff take nothing thereby" (Id., prayer at ¶A).
- 4. Defendants thereafter stipulated to the issuance of a Writ of Attachment against the Property and, in light thereof, a Writ of Attachment was issued by this Court on August 5, 2005. (R. Vol. 1, p. 62.)
- 5. On November 22, 2005, the Court entered an Order allowing Plaintiff to amend his complaint, in accordance with the Motion and Memorandum filed therewith. (R. Vol. 1, p.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> For inexplicable reasons, several pleadings filed by the Plaintiff do not appear in the Court's record. While none of these missing documents are critical to the resolution of this dispute, they are included herein as part of an Addendum. The Motion and Memorandum to Amend are included as Exhibit "A" in the Addendum.

65.)

- 6. On April 13, 2006, the Utah Court in the case in which the Judgment was entered, ruled that the Judgment entered July 5, 2005 "effectively disposed of Mr. Grazer as a party as well as any of his claims against the plaintiffs [including the Defendant herein Gordon A. Jones] and the plaintiffs' claims against him." The court certified the July 2005 judgment as final, and augmented the prior judgment with an additional \$222,584.32.
- 7. On April 18, 2006, Gordon A. Jones filed a case under Chapter 7 of the Bankruptcy Code, staying further proceedings in this case. (R. Vol. 1, p. 69; see also R. Vol. 5, p. 598-600.)
- 8. On July 17, 2006, the Chapter 7 Bankruptcy Trustee removed this Action from the jurisdiction of Idaho to the jurisdiction of the Utah Bankruptcy Court. (R. Vol. 1, p. 68-71.)
- 9. In April 2007, the Chapter 7 Trustee and Grazer entered into an Agreement, approved by the United States Bankruptcy Court for the District of Utah abandoning this cause of action from the bankruptcy estate and specifically authorizing Grazer to proceed with his action to collect against the real property at issue herein (the "Property"). (R. Vol. 1, p. 87-97.) All property of the bankruptcy estate, specifically including the Franklin County property and the associated water shares and specifically including the action below, were abandoned from the bankruptcy estate to the Plaintiff. (Id at p. 92-93.) The bankruptcy court's order specifically stated that "Grazer shall be entitled to fully pursue all his rights and claims against the aforesaid property in any State or Federal Court what [sic] would have jurisdiction absent the filing of the Debtor's bankruptcy." (*Id.* at p. 89-90.)
  - 10. On January 20, 2009, an Order of Discharge was granted in the Gordon Jones

Bankruptcy. The Order provides "However, a creditor may have the right to enforce a valid lien, such as a mortgage or a security interest, against the debtor's property after the bankruptcy, if that lien was not avoided or eliminated in the bankruptcy case." (R. Vol. 4, p. 549, ¶18.)

- 11. No action to avoid the judgment lien of Grazer was commenced in the Gordon Jones Bankruptcy. (R. Vol. 4, p. 549, ¶19.)
- 12. On May 7, 2007, Grazer requested a Scheduling and Management Conference in this Case. (A copy of this request does not appear in the Court's record. A true and correct copy of the Request, including Plaintiff's counsel's certificate of service, is included in the Addendum as Exhibit "B.")
- 13. On December 26, 2007, Grazer again requested a Scheduling and Management Conference in this Case. (R. Vol. 1, p. 83.)
- 14. On January 2, 2008, Jones' then-acting counsel withdrew. (R. Vol. 1, p. 104.) On February 4, 2008, Lane Erickson appeared on behalf of Gordon Jones, Linda Jones and J & J Livestock. (R. Vol. 1, p. 107.)
- 15. On March 13, 2008, the Court set this matter for trial on November 5 and 6, 2008 (R. Vol. 1, p. 112.)
- 16. On August 21, 2008, Lane Erickson filed a Motion to Withdraw. (R. Vol. 1, p. 117.)
- 17. On October 8, 2008, Judge Mitchell Brown disqualified himself; the matter was referred to the Administrative District Judge for reassignment (R. Vol. 1, p. 119); Judge McDermott referred the matter to Judge Dunn (R. Vol. 1, p. 120.); On October 22, 2008, Judge Dunn disqualified himself and again referred the matter to the Administrative Judge for

reassignment (R. Vol. 1, p. 121). On October 29, 2008, this matter was referred to Judge Nye. (R. Vol. 1, p. 123.)

- 18. On October 14, 2008, Kent Hawkins was substituted as counsel for Linda Jones. (This pleading is also omitted from the Court's file.)
- 19. On May 13, 2009, Lane V. Erickson filed a Motion to Dismiss on behalf of Jones supported by an Affidavit of Lane V. Erickson in which he stated that he was the attorney for Gordon A. Jones, noting that the case had been "assigned and reassigned to several judges who for various reasons disqualified themselves...." and further stating that the discharge granted in Jones' bankruptcy had discharged the debt. (R. Vol. 1, p. 124-34.)
- 20. On July 31, 2009, the parties' counsel appeared for argument on the Motion to Dismiss. The Amended Complaint was not in the Court's file, and Defendants' counsel (for Linda Jones and Gordon Jones) denied having received a copies. A copy for the Plaintiff's counsel was filed. Copies were made and distributed to Lane Erickson and Dave Gallafant (of Merrill & Merrill). At the request of Defendants' counsel, the hearing was vacated. In a Minute Entry and Order arising from that hearing, Mr. Erickson was advised to re-notice his motion, and the Court indicated it would "send out the standard form for getting [the case] on the Court's calendar for trial. (R. Vol. 2, p. 291-92.) That motion was never re-noticed.
- 21. On November 4, 2009, Plaintiff filed a Motion to File Second Amended Complaint (R. Vol. 2, p. 293); the Motion was stipulated to by all counsel (R. Vol. 3, p. 325); the Second Amended Complaint was filed on December 7, 2009. (R. Vol. 3, p. 329.)
- 22. Jason Jones was served with a copy of the Second Amended Complaint on February 10, 2010. (R. Vol. 3, p. 429.)

- 23. On February 26, 2010, Jared Steadman of Merrill & Merrill filed a Notice of Special Appearance on behalf of Jason Jones (R. Vol. 3, p. 432), and a Motion to Dismiss [the Second Amended Complaint]. (R. Vol. 3, p. 434.) That Motion was based upon allegations that the Summons had been improperly issued, and that it was not served in a timely fashion.
- 24. Jason Jones was once again served with a copy of the Second Amended Complaint, this time with a Summons which had been issued by the Court, on April 15, 2010. (R. Vol. 4, p. 473.)
- 25. On May 3, 2010, Jared Steadman filed a Second Notice of Special Appearance on behalf of Jason Jones (R. Vol. 4, p. 476), and a Renewed Motion to Dismiss [the Second Amended Complaint]. (R. Vol. 3, p. 434.)
- 26. On June 11, 2010, the Court dismissed the Second Amended Complaint as to Jason Jones. (R. Vol. 4, p. 480.)
- 27. On July 19, 2010, the attorneys for all parties submitted a Joint Statement Submitting Information for Scheduling Order stipulating to three trial dates with first setting to be in February, 2011. (R. Vol. 4, p. 492.)
- 28. On August 20, 2010, Judge David C. Nye entered a Scheduling Order, Notice of Trial Setting and Initial Pretrial Order setting the Trial in a 1<sup>st</sup> Setting commencing February 8, 2011. (R. Vol. 4, p. 501.)
- 29. On January 13, 2011, in a telephonic status conference requested by Defendants' attorney, Lane V. Erickson, the February 2011 trial dates were stricken and trial dates were set for March 29, 2011 April 1, 2011. (R. Vol. 4, p. 532.)
  - 30. On January 21, 2011, Defendants Gordon Jones (individually and as personal

representative of Linda G. Jones) and J & J Livestock, filed their Answer to Plaintiff's Second Amended Complaint. (R. Vol. 4, p. 534.) The Answer denied that the July 7, 2005 Judgment was final (*Id.* at ¶16), and contained a number of admissions that mooted much of the Plaintiff's Second Amended Complaint. The answer asserted that the Utah Judgment "was not a 'final judgment' upon which a valid Foreign Judgment can be issued (Id, First Affirmative Defense), asserted that Plaintiff was "judicially estopped from claiming that the 'final judgment' of the Utah court was entered on any date other than April 13, 2006..." (*Id.*, Second Affirmative Defense), asserted that plaintiff could not "seek to execute against any of the Defendants' real property until such time as Plaintiff has fully satisfied each and every requirement set forth in I.C. § 11-102," (*Id.*, Third Affirmative Defense), asserted that "Plaintiff cannot seek the enforcement of any judgment it claims or any execution it derives therefrom...until such time as Plaintiff [established that the judgment had not been satisfied]. "(*Id.*, Fourth Affirmative Defense.)

- 31. On February 11, 2011, Defendant Jones filed a "Pre-trial Brief, a/k/a Motion for Summary Judgment. (R. Vol. 4, p. 544.) On that same date, Plaintiff filed his Motion for Summary Judgment and for Issuance of Writ of Execution. (R. Vol. 5, p. 566.)
- 32. On February 16, 2011, the Court vacated the March 29, 2011 April 1, 2011 trial setting. (R. Vol. 5, p. 649.)
- 33. On February 23, 2011, the Court issued a Notice of Taking Summary Judgment Under Advisement. (R. Vol. 5, p. 653.)
- 34. On February 25, 2011, Plaintiff filed a Notice of Intent to File Response to Defendant's Pre-Trial Brief aka Motion for Summary Judgment; Plaintiff's first awareness of the

filing of the Motion had arisen from the Court's Notice. (R. Vol. 5, p. 679.)

- 35. On March 7, 2011, Plaintiff filed a Combined Response to the Pre-trial Brief aka Motion for Summary Judgment (R. Vol. 6, p. 694); on March 21, 2011, Defendant filed his Reply. (R. Vol. 6, p. 758.)
- 36. On April 1, 2011, the Court filed its Decision on Motions for Summary Judgment (R. Vol. 6, p. 767); on April 26, 2011, the Court issued its Judgment, Decree and Order. (R.Vol. 6, p. 779.)
  - 37. Plaintiff filed this appeal on June 1, 2011. (R. Vol. 6, p. 803.)

#### **ISSUES PRESENTED ON APPEAL**

- 1. The Court erred in granting Defendants' Motion for Summary Judgment, by holding that Plaintiff failed to timely execution or to renew the Judgment.
- 2. The Court erred in denying the Plaintiff's Motion for Summary Judgment and for Writ of Execution.
  - 3. The Court erred in granting Jason Jones' renewed Motion to Dismiss.

#### ATTORNEY FEES ON APPEAL

Appellant claims attorney fees on this appeal, based upon the fact that the underlying Judgment, which Plaintiff seeks to enforce, provided for attorney fees incurred in connection with the collection thereof. (R., Vol. 3, p. 350.)

#### **ARGUMENT**

- 1. THE COURT ERRED IN HOLDING THAT PLAINTIFF FAILED TO TIMELY EXECUTE OR TO RENEW THE JUDGMENT
  - a. Plaintiff's Action, Commenced Prior to the Entry of Judgment, Either

Tolled or Mooted Idaho Code Ann. 10-1111, to the Extent it is "Treated as a Statute of Limitations".

The basis for the court's dismissal of the action arises from Idaho Code Ann. 10-1111, which provides as follows:

#### § 10-1111. RENEWAL OF JUDGMENT - LIEN

- (1) Unless the judgment has been satisfied, at any time prior to the expiration of the lien created by section 10-1110, Idaho Code, or any renewal thereof, the court which entered the judgment, other than a judgment for child support, may, upon motion, renew such judgment. The renewed judgment may be recorded in the same manner as the original judgment, and the lien established thereby shall continue for five (5) years from the date of judgment.
- (2) Unless the judgment has been satisfied, and prior to the expiration of the lien created in section 10-1110, Idaho Code, or any renewal thereof, a court that has entered a judgment for child support may, upon motion, renew such judgment. The renewed judgment may be enforced in the same manner as the original judgment, and the lien established thereby shall continue for ten (10) years from the date of the renewed judgment.

The court's reliance on this section was misplaced for several reasons; first and foremost, the Plaintiff's action which was filed prior to the entry of the Judgment, and which was continuously pursued thereafter, tolled Section 10-1111. The Plaintiff's action was filed in connection with an effort to execute upon the Judgment; the Plaintiff could not have executed upon his Judgment prior to January of 2011, because up to that time, the Defendants were contesting whether or not Defendant Gordon Jones even had any interest in the Franklin County property. It would have been impossible for the Plaintiff to execute upon the Judgment when the record title was, at best, clouded as to the ownership of the title.

None of the cases which were relied upon by the Defendants or the Plaintiff involved a situation such as this, where the Plaintiff had actually filed and had pending an action respecting the allegedly expired Judgment. While Plaintiff had never specifically requested that

the Court issue an execution prior to his filing his Motion for Summary Judgment and Writ of Execution (which promptly followed the first opportunity to be able to do so) it was implicit the entire time that the Plaintiff was seeking to clarify the status of title so that a Writ of Execution could ultimately be issued.

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