11-2-2011

Grazer v. Jones Respondent's Brief Dckt. 38852

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

I. NATURE OF THE CASE

The Respondents obtained over 200 acres of real property in Franklin County Idaho in 2002. Respondent Gordon Jones operated a construction company doing business in both Idaho and Utah. In 2004, Respondent Gordon Jones commenced a lawsuit in Utah to collect from Appellant monies owed for the construction of a home.

In the subsequent Utah state court proceedings, a judgment was entered against Respondent Gordon Jones individually and in favor of Appellant. Prior to the entering of the judgment in Utah, the Respondents transferred away the above described real property to Respondent J&J Livestock, LLC.

Appellant filed the Utah state court judgment in the Idaho District Court of Franklin County as a foreign judgment pursuant to I.C. § 10-1110. This foreign judgment was also recorded in Franklin County to create a lien on the real property pursuant to I.C. § 10-1110. Thereafter, Appellant filed a lawsuit against the Respondents to undo the transfer of the real property alleging that the transfer was fraudulent.

The case was delayed for many reasons. During this time Respondent Linda Jones passed away, requiring her estate to become a party in these proceedings. Additionally, in 2010, District Judge David C. Nye dismissed Respondent Jason Jones from the litigation. More than five years after the foreign judgment was filed by the Appellant, and the Appellant filed its fraudulent conveyance case, the matter was scheduled for trial by Judge Nye. Judge Nye and the parties all agreed that none of the facts were in dispute and that the matter could be resolved by

jointly filed motions for summary judgment rather than by holding an evidentiary trial. The parties submitted their initial briefs, responses and replies, all of which Judge Nye took under advisement.

On April 1, 2011, Judge Nye issued his Decision on Motions for Summary Judgment concluding that Appellant's judgment and judgment lien had lapsed because the Appellant had failed to renew his judgment or judgment lien within 5 years as required by I.C. § 10-1111. Judge Nye also concluded that Appellant had failed to seek any writs within the time provided by Idaho law as required by I.C. §§ 11-101 and 105. As a result, Judge Nye entered his Decision on Motion for Summary Judgment and granted judgment in favor of Respondents and against the Appellant. The Appellant now appeals.

II. STATEMENT OF THE FACTS

On November 8, 2002, Respondents Gordon & Linda Jones received real property in Franklin County, Idaho by warranty deed consisting of an excess of 200 acres (hereafter the "Franklin Property"). The warranty deed was recorded on November 12, 2002, as Franklin County Recorder's Instrument No. 219428.¹

¹ R. at 331-32, paragraph 17.

Respondent Gordon Jones initiated litigation in Utah to collect from the Appellant monies Respondent Gordon Jones believed were due and owing for building Appellant a home. This case was designated as Utah state court, Davis County Case No. 020700570.²

Appellant countersued and on December 15, 2004, the Judge in the Utah case scheduled a trial in the matter for April 26-29, 2005.³

On December 22, 2004, Respondents transferred the Franklin Property by quitclaim deed to Respondent J&J Livestock, LLC. Said quitclaim deed was recorded on December 27, 2004, as Franklin County Recorder's Instrument No. 228503.⁴ Respondent J&J Livestock, LLC was formed by Respondents in the state of Utah on December 28, 2004.⁵ On March 7, 2005, Respondents also transferred water shares that are appurtenant to the Franklin Property to Respondents Linda Jones and Jason Jones.⁶

The Utah, Davis County case went to trial. Utah District Court Judge Michael G. Allphin dismissed the claims brought by Respondent Gordon Jones and on April 29, 2005, declared his intention to award judgment in favor of Appellant and against Respondent Gordon Jones.⁷

² R. at 332, paragraphs 18-19.

³ R. at 332-33, paragraph 21.

⁴ R. at 345-46.

⁵ R. at 333, paragraph 23.

⁶ R. at 333, paragraph 24.

⁷ R. at 333, paragraph 26.

On May 11, 2005, Appellant filed his complaint in this action commencing the present case in an effort to undo what he claimed were fraudulent transfers involving the Franklin County property.⁸

A document, purporting to be a judgment was entered by Judge Allphin in the Utah, Davis County case on July 7, 2005, against Respondent Gordon Jones individually in the amount of \$1,886,727.87.⁹

On July 15, 2005, the Respondents transferred the Franklin Property by quitclaim deed from Respondent J&J Livestock LLC back to the Respondents Gordon & Linda Jones individually. Said quitclaim deed was recorded on July 29, 2005, as Franklin County Recorder's Instrument No. 230638.¹⁰

On August 1, 2005, pursuant to I.C. § 10-1110, Appellant chose to file a Notice of Filing Foreign Judgment, and the Affidavit of Margaret H. Olson re: Foreign Judgment in the present litigation.¹¹ By doing so, Appellant filed in Franklin County Idaho, as a foreign judgment, the Utah, Davis County judgment described above.

On September 23, 2005, Appellant also chose to record its Notice of Filing Foreign Judgment as Franklin County Recorder's Instrument No. 231394.¹² Appellant also recorded the document issued by Judge Allphin in the Utah state court proceedings purporting to be a

⁸ R. at 1-10.

⁹ R. at 347-51.

¹⁰ R. at 561.

¹¹ R. at 334, paragraph 31; R. at 369-74.

¹² R. at 369-70.

Judgment in the sum of \$1,886,727.87. Said document was recorded as Franklin County Recorder's Instrument No. 231395.¹³

By reason of having recorded the documents described above, Appellant affirmatively declared that he had obtained a judgment "lien" against the Respondents' Franklin Property on September 23, 2005.¹⁴ Appellant maintained this position in his Settlement Agreement with the Chapter 7 Bankruptcy Trustee described below.¹⁵

On April 18, 2006, Respondent Gordon Jones individually filed a Chapter 7 bankruptcy in Utah. On January 31, 2007, the Chapter 7 Bankruptcy Trustee and Appellant entered in a Settlement Agreement concerning among other things Appellant's litigation in Idaho against Respondent Gordon Jones for the alleged fraudulent transfers.¹⁶

The Settlement Agreement states in pertinent part:

The Trustee stipulates and agrees that [Appellant] has a valid, enforceable security interest in the [therein described] property of [Respondent Gordon Jones'] bankruptcy [including the Franklin Property]. . . . Upon the Effective Date of the Agreement, . . . any and all property of the [Respondent Gordon Jones'] bankruptcy estate of any kind whatsoever, known or unknown, tangible and intangible, including, but not limited to real property . . . personal property . . . causes of action . . . [including] the Idaho Fraudulent Transfer Action . . . shall be deemed abandoned and no longer property of the [Respondent Gordon Jones'] bankruptcy estate and [Appellant] shall be deemed to have relief from the stay to pursue any and all state court remedies against the [Respondent Gordon Jones] and such property.¹⁷

¹³ R. at 371-74.

¹⁴ R. at 334, paragraph 31.

¹⁵ R. at 400, paragraph H.

¹⁶ R. at 335, paragraphs 35-37; R. at 381-414.

¹⁷ R. at 404, paragraph 4.

The Settlement Agreement further states that Appellant is entitled to fully pursue all his rights and claims against the aforesaid property, which rights and claims are not altered, amended or affected in any way by this Agreement or by the filing of the Respondent Gordon Jones' bankruptcy case. Further, the Settlement Agreement states that it is binding on Respondent Gordon Jones.¹⁸

The Settlement Agreement was approved by the Bankruptcy Court in an Order dated April 19, 2007.¹⁹

On January 20, 2009, Bankruptcy Judge Judith A. Boulden issued an Order granting a discharge of all of Respondent Gordon Jones' unsecured debt. This Order of Discharge "prohibits any attempt to collect from [Respondent Gordon Jones] a debt that has been discharged. . . . However, a creditor may have the right to enforce a *valid* lien such as a mortgage or security interest, against the debtor's property after bankruptcy, if that lien was not avoided or eliminated in the bankruptcy case."²⁰

The judgment lien that Appellant affirmatively declared that he had obtained against the Franklin Property on September 23, 2005, was not avoided in the bankruptcy case. Additionally, the filing of the Notice of Foreign Judgment in Idaho by Appellant was not avoided in the bankruptcy case.²¹

¹⁸ R. at 335-36, paragraphs 38-40; R. at

¹⁹ R. at 414-25.

²⁰ R. at 336, paragraphs 41-44; R. at 414-25.

²¹ R. at 336, paragraph 45.

On February 23, 2011, District Judge David C. Nye took the case under advisement, upon the receipt of the summary judgment briefs, responses and replies from Appellant and Respondents.²² At no time during the pendency of these proceedings did Appellant ever take any action or file any motion of any sort with this Court or any court in Idaho to renew his Foreign Judgment or to renew his judgment lien in any way as required by I.C. § 10-1111.²³

Further, Appellant never filed any motion of any sort with this Court or any court in Idaho to seek execution on the Foreign Judgment or the judgment lien he declared to have obtained as required by I.C. §§ 11-101 and 105.²⁴

More than five (5) years passed since Appellant filed his Foreign Judgment in Franklin County Idaho. Additionally, more than five (5) years passes since Appellant recorded the document issued by Judge Allphin in the Utah state court proceedings purporting to create his judgment lien in the sum of \$1,886,727.87. Said documents were recorded as Franklin County Recorder's Instrument No. 231394 and 231395 respectively on September 23, 2005.²⁵

All of the causes of action in Appellant's Second Amended Complaint are dependent upon the existence and validity of the Foreign Judgment and judge lien Appellant declared to have obtained.²⁶

²² R. at 653-655.

²³ Record before the Court is devoid of any such motions or requests.

²⁴ Record before the Court is devoid of any such motions or requests.

²⁵ R. at 334, paragraph 31; R. at 348-351.

²⁶ R. at 329-44.

ISSUES PRESENTED ON APPEAL

It appears that the following issues have been identified and/or argued by the Appellant in his Appellants' Brief:

1. Whether the district court properly granted Respondent's motion for summary judgment upon deciding that Appellant's foreign judgment and judgment lien had lapsed?
2. Whether the district court properly denied the Appellant's motion for summary judgment upon deciding that Appellant had failed to seek a timely writ of execution?
3. Whether the district court properly dismissed Respondent Jason Jones as a party from these proceedings?

In addition, Respondents identify the following issue on appeal: Whether Respondents are entitled to attorney fees and costs on appeal?

ATTORNEY FEES ON APPEAL

Respondents are entitled to an award of attorney fees and costs on appeal pursuant to I.C. § 12-121, I.R.C.P. 54(e)(1), and I.A.R. 11.2. The Appellant's pursuit of this appeal must be deemed unreasonable, frivolous, without merit, not well grounded, not warranted by existing law, and not made in good faith.

The evidence relied upon by the district court below was undisputed, uncontroverted and derived primarily from the Appellant's own pleadings, namely the Appellant's Second Amended

Complaint and the exhibits attached thereto. The Appellant failed to present any evidence sufficient to create any genuine issues of material fact. The Appellant ignored the clear law regarding judgments and judgment liens in Idaho and the proper methods in which said judgments and judgment liens are renewed. Rather, Appellant simply seeks to have this Court ignore the applicable law and allow him to still proceed on his lapsed judgment and lapsed judgment lien.

For these reasons and upon these grounds, Respondents respectfully requests attorney fees and costs on appeal pursuant to I.C. § 12-121, I.R.C.P. 54(e)(1), and I.A.R. 11.2.

STANDARD OF REVIEW AND ARGUMENT

I. SUMMARY JUDGMENT STANDARD OF REVIEW

Summary Judgment is appropriate when “. . . the pleadings, depositions, and admissions on file, together with the affidavits, if any, show that there is no genuine issue as to any material fact and that the moving party is entitled to Judgment as a matter of law.” *State v. Rubbermaid*, 129 Idaho 353 (1996) citing to *McCoy v. Lions*, 120 Idaho 765, 769 (1991).

Once the moving party establishes the absence of a genuine issue, the burden shifts to the nonmoving party to make a showing of the existence of a genuine issue of material fact on the elements challenged by the moving party. *Thomson v. Idaho Ins. Agency, Inc.*, 126 Idaho 527, 530-31, 887 P.2d 1034, 1037-38 (1994). It is well settled in Idaho that in order to create a genuine issue of material fact, the party opposing the motion must present more than just a conclusory assertions that an issue of material fact exists. *Van Velson Corp. v. Westwood Mall*

Assoc., 126 Idaho 401, 406, 884 P.2d 414, 419, (1994). “Rather, the [opposing party] must respond to the summary judgment motion with specific facts showing that there is a genuine issue for trial.” *Tuttle v. Sudenga Indus., Inc.*, 125 Idaho 145, 150, 868 P.2d 473, 478 (1994).

The non-moving party has the obligation of establishing the existence of each element essential to any claims they have made in which they bear the burden of proof at trial. This obligation has been imposed by the United States Supreme Court in applying Rule 56(c) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure in the case of *Cellotex Corp. v. Catrett*, 477 U.S. 317 (1986). The Idaho Supreme Court has adopted *Cellotex* in the application of Idaho Rules of Civil Procedure 56(c). *See, Badell v. Beeks*, 115 Idaho 101,102 (1998). In *Cellotex*, Justice Renquist wrote for the majority and explained:

The plain language of Rule 56(c) mandates the entry of Summary Judgment, after adequate time for discovery and upon motion, against a party who fails to make a showing sufficient to establish the existence of an element essential to that party’s case, and on which that party will bear the burden of proof at trial. In such a situation, there can be no genuine issue as to any material fact, since a complete failure of proof concerning an essential element of the non-moving party’s case necessarily renders all other facts immaterial. The moving party is entitled to a Judgment as a matter of law . . . 477 U.S. at 322-323.

As a result of *Cellotex*, the Appellant in this case cannot raise merit-less claims to defeat Summary Judgment. Rather the Appellant must introduce or point to facts in the record that support each element of each claim asserted in Appellant’s Second Amended Complaint.

The facts of the present case are admitted to by the Appellant in his Second Amended Complaint. By application of Idaho law, namely I.C. § 10-1111, the Appellant’s foreign judgment and judgment lien lapsed and can no longer be pursued by Appellant. Additionally,

even if the foreign judgment and judgment lien were still somehow valid, Appellant has entirely failed to timely execute on the foreign judgment he declared to have obtained pursuant to I.C. §§ 11-101 and 105. For these reasons, all of Appellant's claims in his Second Amended Complaint fail, there are no remaining valid causes of action for Appellant to pursue, and the dismissal Appellant's Second Amended Complaint and this litigation by the district court was proper.

II. APPELLANT'S FOREIGN JUDGMENT AND JUDGMENT LIEN LAPSED

Both the foreign judgment and the judgment lien Appellant declared that he obtained, lapsed by operation of Idaho law. Once it has been correctly filed a foreign judgment becomes enforceable as an Idaho judgment as of the date of filing pursuant to I.C. § 10-1302. *G&R Petroleum, Inc., v. Clements*, 127 Idaho 119, 120, 898 P.2d 50, 51 (1995). Upon recording, such a judgment becomes a lien upon real property. *Westmark Federal Credit Union v. Smith*, 116 Idaho 474, 476, 776 P.2d 1193, 1195 (1989).

A judgment lien is purely a creature of statute and does not exist in the body of our common law. *Messenger v. Burns*, 86 Idaho 26, 29, 383 P.2d 913, 914 (1963). A judgment lien is created in Idaho by recording a judgment with the county recorder. I.C. § 10-1110. "The lien resulting from recording of a judgment other than for support of a child continues five (5) years from the date of the judgment." I.C. § 10-1110. At any time prior to the expiration of the lien created by I.C. § 10-1110, the court which entered the judgment, may *upon motion*, renew such judgment. I.C. § 10-1111 (*Italics added*). The renewed judgment may be recorded in the same

manner as the original judgment, and the lien established thereby shall continue for five (5) years. *Id.*

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